
           
CITY OF TEXAS CITY

REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2023 - 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM -  CITY HALL

 1801 9th Ave. N.
Texas City, TX  77590

PLEASE NOTE: Public comments and matters from the floor are generally limited to 3 minutes in length.
If you would like to request to speak, please do so in advance of the meeting by filling out a Request To
Address Commission form. All in attendance are required to remove hats and/or sunglasses (dark
glasses) during meetings and to also silence all cell phones and electronic devices.
 

           
(1) ROLL CALL   
 

(2) INVOCATION   
 

(3) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 

(4) PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS   
 

(a) Service Awards    
Fabian Aguilera Sanitation 12/03/2013 10 years
Daniel Swaney Fire 12/02/2013 10 years
Greg Garrett Fire 12/08/2008 15 years
Christopher Ham Police 12/01/2008 15 years
Melvin Thompson Municipal Court 12/28/1998 25 years

 
(b) Awarding Texas City Scavenger Hunt Winners.

 
(5) REPORTS   
 

(a)
 
(6) PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

(7) CONSENT AGENDA   
 



(a) Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 15, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)
 

(b) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-135, Consent to Annexation into
Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79. (City Engineer)

 
(c) Consider and take action on Resolution No.2023-136, approving and awarding the

purchase of a John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower for the Bayou Golf Course from
Deere & Company through Buyboard (Contract No. 706-23) - local government
purchasing cooperative. (Recreation and Tourism)

 
(d) Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-137, appointing an interim Finance

Director. (Mayor's Office)
 
(8) REGULAR ITEMS   
 

(a) Consider and take action on the second reading of Ordinance 2023-43, amending the
Texas City Code of Ordinances entitled "General Regulations," Chapter 90: "Streets
Sidewalks and Other Public Places" to adopt and become effective upon its final
reading. (City Engineer)

 
(9) COMMISSIONERS' COMMENTS   
 

(10) MAYOR'S COMMENTS   
 

(11) ADJOURNMENT   
 

NOTICE OF ANY SUBJECT APPEARING ON THIS AGENDA REGARDLESS OF HOW THE MATTER
IS STATED MAY BE ACTED UPON BY THE CITY COMMISSION.
NOTICE: The City of Texas City will furnish free transportation to handicapped individuals via a 4-door
sedan for anyone wishing to attend the City Commission meetings.  Call 948-3111, City Secretary's
Office before noon on Monday preceding the meeting to make arrangements.

I, THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS NOTICE OF MEETING WAS
POSTED ON THE BULLETIN BOARDS AT CITY HALL, 1801 9TH AVENUE NORTH, TEXAS CITY,
TEXAS, AT A PLACE CONVENIENT AND READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND
ON THE CITY'S WEBSITE ON DECEMBER 1, 2023, PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M. AND REMAINED SO
POSTED CONTINUOUSLY FOR AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRECEDING THE SCHEDULED TIME OF
SAID MEETING.

______________________
RHOMARI LEIGH
CITY SECRETARY
  



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (a)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
December 2023 Service Awards
Submitted For: Jennifer Price, Human Resources 
Submitted By: Susan Sensat, Human Resources
Department: Human Resources

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Service Awards      
Fabian Aguilera Sanitation 12/03/2013 10 years
Daniel Swaney Fire 12/02/2013 10 years
Greg Garrett Fire 12/08/2008 15 years
Christopher Ham Police 12/01/2008 15 years
Melvin Thompson Municipal Court 12/28/1998 25 years

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Service Award(s) for the following individual(s) for the month of December is based on their
years of service with the City.

RECOMMENDATION
Human Resources recommend approval of the December service awards.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (4) (b)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Awarding Texas City Scavenger Hunt Winners
Submitted For: Derek Miller, Management Services 
Submitted By: Derek Miller, Management Services
Department: Management Services

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Present 1st, 2nd and 3rd Place Prizes to winners of the Texas City Scavenger Hunt.

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
The first City Wide Scavenger Hunt started on September 1, 2023, and ended on November
30th of this year.  The Scavenger Hunt was open to anyone that wanted to participate in the
program. Participants picked up just over 240 packets and spent the duration of the two
months trying to complete all 26 challenges. 1st place received will receive a $500 Visa gift
card.  2nd place will receive a $300 Visa Gift Card, and 3rd place will receive a $200 Visa gift
card. 20 individuals submitted a completed Scavenger Hunt packet.

The program was designed to get the community involved in events, and meetings, and get to
know their city officials. After visiting with multiple small businesses and seeing the
attendance at the Commission meetings over the last three months and the attendance at the
recent Community Conversation meeting, I feel the Scavenger Hunt was a HUGE success. 

RECOMMENDATION
Present prizes to the individuals who won first, second, and third place for the Second Annual
Scavenger Hunt.

Fiscal Impact



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (5) (a)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Utilities Customer Service (Water Billing)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Staff Report 



WATER BILLING/CUSTOMER 
SERVICE DEPARTMENT

SUPERVISOR  IRENE FATTIG

BILLING CLERK II  ANDREA RIVERA

BILLING CLERK I  TERESA GAGNE

CUSTOMER SERVICE REPRESENTATIVE  CRISSIE COLUMBUS

CS FIELD TECHNICIAN  XAVIER WELLS

CS FIELD TECHNICIAN AMY ROBERTS



BEACON (SMART METER)REPLACEMENT PROJECT

 2016-BEGAN SEEKING OUT A BETTER 
SOLUTION TO REPLACE MANUAL 
METER READING.

 2017-MET WITH SEVERAL 
COMPANIES TO COMPARE THREE 
TECHNOLOGIES.

 CELLULAR

 SATELLITE

 RADIO FREQUENCY

 2018-DECIDED ON A BADGER PRODUCT. 
BEACON® ADVANCED METERING ANALYTICS 
(AMA) CELLULAR SYSTEM.

 4/2019-BEGAN METER CHANGE OUTS.

 2020-CONTINUED CHANGING METERS.

 12/2021-ALMOST COMPLETE. 

 12/2022-UNDER 100 METERS TO CHANGE. 
BADGER MANUFACTURING IS HAVING ISSUES 
SHIPPING OUT 2” METERS.



 12/2020 APPROX. 11,800 METERS IN THE GROUND.

 12/2021 APPROX. 16,200 METERS IN THE GROUND.

 12/2022 APPROX. 17,800 METERS IN THE GROUND.

 12/2023 APPROX. 19,000 METERS IN THE GROUND.

 2024--STILL GROWING…

BEACON (SMART METER)REPLACEMENT PROJECT



CHANGES IN CELLULAR TECHNOLOGY

 IN NOVEMBER 2022, BADGER MOVED FROM 3G/4G TO 5G.

 APPROXIMATELY 300 METERS WERE AFFECTED INITIALLY. 

 BADGER REPLACED THESE ENDPOINTS WITH NO COST TO THE CITY.

 WE CURRENTLY HAVE ABOUT 250 ENDPOINTS OFFLINE.

 BADGER IS CHANGING THESE OUT THIS WEEK AND NEXT.

 WE EXPECT MORE CHANGES IN THE FUTURE THAT WOULD MOST LIKELY AFFECT OUR SYSTEM.

  THERE ARE COORDINATED EFFORTS BETWEEN THE BILLING AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENTS, AND 
BADGER AND ACCURATE METER SUPPLY TO MAKE THESE TRANSITIONS AS SMOOTH AS 
POSSIBLE.



 NEW/UPCOMING CONSTRUCTION BY SUBDIVISION

GROWTH IN TEXAS CITY

SUBDIVISION LOCATION STATUS

LAGO MAR WEST TEXAS CITY/I-45 IN DEVELOPMENT

COBBLESTONE WEST TEXAS CITY/FM 2004 IN DEVELOPMENT

CENTRAL PARK WEST TEXAS CITY/FM 2004 IN DEVELOPMENT

CENTRAL PARK SOUTH WEST TEXAS CITY/FM 2004 IN DEVELOPMENT

VIDA COSTERA WEST TEXAS CITY/HWY 3 BETWEEN EF LOWRY AND AMBURN RD IN DEVELOPMENT

BROOKWATER WEST TEXAS CITY/FM 2004 BEHIND MAINLAND CITY CENTRE COMING SOON

LAKESIDE BAYOU OFF 646 NEAR LEAGUE CITY COMING SOON

SUNRISE COVE EAST TEXAS CITY/23RD ST N @ 34TH AVE N COMING SOON

STEED LANDING OLD ST. JOHN'S CHURCH PROPERTY COMING SOON



GROWTH IN TEXAS CITY 
• WITH ONGOING GROWTH COMES GROWING PAINS IN OUR DIFFERENT 

DEPARTMENTS.

• NEW PROCEDURES IMPLEMENTED IN COORDINATION WITH THE 
ENGINEERING, INSPECTIONS, UTILITIES, AND CUSTOMER SERVICE 
DEPARTMENTS.

• PERMITTING

• INSPECTIONS

• WATER BILLING ACCOUNTS

• MONTHLY MEETINGS WITH RESPECTIVE DEPARTMENTS.





   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (a)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 15, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
RECOMMENDATION

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Minutes 



REGULAR CALLED CITY COMMISSION MEETING

M I N U T E S 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2023 – 5:00 P.M.
KENNETH T. NUNN COUNCIL ROOM – CITY HALL

 
A Regular Called Meeting of the City Commission was held on Wednesday, NOVEMBER 15, 2023, at
5:00 P.M. in the Kenneth T. Nunn Council Room in City Hall, Texas City, Texas. A quorum having been
met, the meeting was called to order at 5:05 p.m. by Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson.
 

               
1. ROLL CALL

Present: Dedrick D. Johnson, Mayor   
Thelma Bowie, Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem   
Abel Garza, Jr. , Commissioner At-Large   
DeAndre' Knoxson, Commissioner District 1   
Felix Herrera, Commissioner District 2   
Jami Clark, Commissioner District 4   

Absent: Dorthea Jones Pointer, Commissioner District 3

2. INVOCATION

Led by Pastor Matthew Walker of Restoration City Church.
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Led by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera.
 
4. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS
 

a. Service Awards    
Justin Herter Legal 11/07/2013 10 years
Glenn Park Public Works 11/17/2008 15 years
Edward Cafarella Public Works 11/10/2008 15 years
Jerald Ford Sanitation 11/17/2003 20 years

  

 
b. Proclaiming November 6, 2023 - November 10, 2023, as Municipal Court Week.   

 
5. REPORTS
 

a. Emergency Management Report (Emergency Management)

Joe Tumbleson, Emergency Manager and Homeland Security Director, gave a PowerPoint
presentation.

  

 



6. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were none.
 
7. CONSENT AGENDA

Commissioner District 2 Felix Herera made a motion to approve Consent Agenda items a, b, c,
d, e, f, g, h, i, and j. The motion was seconded by Commissioner District 1 DeAndre Knoxson. 

 
a. Approve City Commission Minutes for the November 1, 2023 meeting. (City Secretary)   

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-126, authorizing the purchase of six (6)

vehicles, for multiple departments, from Chastang Ford in Houston, Texas via the BuyBoard
Purchasing Cooperative. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-127, authorizing the casting of one hundred

ninety-three (193) for Matt Doyle and two (2) votes for Donald Gartman by the City of Texas
City, to serve on the Galveston Central Appraisal District (GCAD) Board of Directors, for the
2024-2025 term. (City Secretary's Office)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-128, approving an engagement of ABHR (a

law firm) for review, representation, and legal counsel regarding the formulation of a TIRZ (Tax
Increment Reinvestment Zone) for the Minto Communities Texas, LLC project.  (City
Engineer)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-129, approving the executing of an

Engineering Agreement with ARKK Engineer, LLC., from Houston, Texas, for the Water Line
Replacement Project - Phase 21. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-130, approving the execution of an

Engineering Service Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., from Houston Texas, for the
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project - Phase 23. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-131, approving the execution of an   



g. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-131, approving the execution of an
Engineering Agreement with ARKK Engineers, LLC., from Houston, Texas, for the Lift Stations
7 and 15 Rehabilitation Project. (Public Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-132, authorizing the first payment to Gulf

Coast Water Authority for the City's portion of the Shannon pump station rehabilitation. (Public
Works)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
i. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-133, authorizing the disbursement and

awarding a Commissioners Community Grant to the Front Door Social and Charity Club
(FDSCC) on behalf of Mayor Pro Tem Bowie. (Mayor's Office - Grants Administration)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
j. Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-134, renewing an agreement between the

City of Texas City and the Texas City-La Marque Chamber of Commerce. (Economic
Development)

  

 
  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
8. REGULAR ITEMS
 

a. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-39, amending
the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 150: Building
Regulations; Construction" to adopt the most current International Building
Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
b. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-40, amending

the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 152: Gas," to
adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
c. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-41, amending

the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 153: Mechanical
Regulations," to adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 



 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
d. Consider and take action on the third and final reading of Ordinance No. 2023-42, amending

the Texas City Code of Ordinances Title XV Entitled “Land Usage,” Chapter 154: Plumbing," to
adopt the most current International Building Codes. (Legal/Building Official)

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner At-Large, Mayor Pro Tem Thelma Bowie, Seconded by

Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
e. Consider and take action on the first reading of Ordinance No. 2023-43, amending the Texas

City Code of Ordinances entitled "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets Sidewalks and
Other Public Places" to adopt and become effective upon its final reading. (City Engineer)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, stated that this change is recommended to conform with existing
city policies regarding the construction and maintenance of city streets by Public Works and
the operation of fire engines and aerial apparatus on solid surfaced roadways defined as
asphalt or concrete surface pavement.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 2 Felix

Herrera 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
f. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-44, amending the fiscal year 2023/2024

budget to include outstanding encumbrances from the 2022/2023 fiscal year. (Finance)

Laura Boyd, Finance Director, stated that purchase orders for purchases or projects
outstanding at the end of the 2022-2023 fiscal year are to be canceled and rolled into the
current fiscal year 2023-2024. Since encumbrances impact budgets, the current fiscal year’s
budget must be increased to reflect outstanding encumbrances from the 2022-2023 fiscal
year.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 1 DeAndre' Knoxson, Seconded by Commissioner District

2 Felix Herrera 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
g. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-45 to permanently rezone for Linda

Duncan/Moses Lake Marina Boat and RV Storage from District "O" (Open Space) to District
"E-4" (Commercial Warehouse). (City Engineer)

Kim Golden, City Engineer, stated that the City Commission advertised and held a public
hearing to receive comments in support and opposition to the subject rezoning at its regular
meeting on November 15, 2015, and then gave preliminary zoning approval. The Texas City
Code of Ordinances provides for preliminary zoning approval to be made final by ordinance
upon the application for a building permit within 12 months from the preliminary zoning
approval. The applicant received a building permit for board and RV storage construction at

  



3902 SH 146 on December 8, 2015.  Therefore, the requirements to finalize the zoning change
have been met.  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark, Seconded by Commissioner District 2 Felix

Herrera 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
h. Consider and take action on Ordinance No. 2023-46, amending the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year

Budget to account for repairs to the Dike Road bridge. (Finance)

Laura Boyd, Finance Director, stated that the Dike Road bridge is in dire need of repair. The
original plan for the Texas Department of Transportation to replace this bridge has been put
on hold until 2027. The estimated cost is $250,000 and requires a budget amendment from the
Dike Fund Unassigned Fund Balance.

  

 
  Motion by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera, Seconded by Commissioner District 1

DeAndre' Knoxson 

  Vote: 6 - 0 CARRIED

 
9. ADJOURNMENT
 
Having no further business, Commissioner District 4 Jami Clark made a MOTION to ADJOURN at
5:45 p.m.; the motion was SECONDED by Commissioner District 2 Felix Herrera. All present voted AYE.
MOTION CARRIED.

  
 ______________________________
 DEDRICK D. JOHNSON, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_________________________________
Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Date Approved:



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (b)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Request to Consent to Annexation into Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 -
Resolution 23-135
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consent to Annexation into Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Galveston County Municipal District No. 79 (MUD 79) and SSLT, LLC have jointly petitioned
the City of Texas City, TX for consent to the annexation into MUD 79 of 17.968 acres
described in Exhibit A attached to the Petition and comprising the first section of the Marlow
Lake North Subdivision and referred to as Section 5 of the Marlow Lake Subdivision.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the Consent to Annexation into Galveston County Municipal
Utility District No. 79

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
GC79 Petition for Consent re Marlow North 























   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (c)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Purchase John Deere Mower
Submitted For: Dennis J Harris, Recreation and Tourism 
Submitted By: Dennis J Harris, Recreation and Tourism
Department: Recreation and Tourism

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-136, approving and awarding the purchase
of a  John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower for the Bayou Golf Course from Deere &
Company through Buyboard (contract #706-23) - local government purchasing cooperative  
 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
Bayou Golf Course is requesting the purchase of a John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower
($37,152.50). This equipment will come with the Standard Options Package ($13,739.88) along with
Dealer Attachments ($9,518.51) This equipment will be replacing existing Toro 3150 equipment that is
currently in inventory. A copy of the proposals for the purchase is attached for your review. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
It is the recommendation of the Parks, Recreation & Tourism Department to award the
purchase of a John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower for the Bayou Golf Course from
Deere & Company through Buyboard (contract #706-23) - local government purchasing
cooperative in the amount of $60,410.89. Funds are available in the FY 2023-24 Capital
Equipment Replacement Budget. 
 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Agenda Item 
Resolution 





















  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-136 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A JOHN DEERE 2550 

TRIPLEX GREENS MOWER FOR THE BAYOU GOLF COURSE FROM 

DEERE & COMPANY THROUGH BUYBOARD (CONTRACT NO. 706-23) - 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PURCHASING COOPERATIVE, A LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT PURCHASING COOPERATIVE PROGRAM; AND 

PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Parks, Recreation & Tourism Department to 

award the purchase of a John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower for the Bayou Golf Course from 

Deere & Company through Buyboard (Contract No.706-23) - local government purchasing 

cooperative in the amount of $60,410.89; and 

 

WHEREAS, funds are available in the FY 2023-24 Capital Equipment Replacement Budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby approves 

the purchase of a John Deere 2550 Triplex Greens Mower for the Bayou Golf Course from Deere & 

Company through Buyboard (Contract No.706-23) - local government purchasing cooperative in the 

amount of $60,410.89, as set out on the quote attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof 

for all intents and purposes.  

 

 SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of December 2023. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (7) (d)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Interim Finance Director
Submitted For: Dedrick Johnson, Mayor's Office 
Submitted By: Rhomari Leigh, City Secretary
Department: City Secretary

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Consider and take action on Resolution No. 2023-137, appointing an interim Finance Director.
(Mayor's Office)

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
This resolution will name Ryan McClellen as the acting Finance Director for the City of Texas
City. Ryan will replace Laura Boyd, who recently retired. This resolution will authorize Ryan
McClellan to be the official signature and authority for all official financial transactions on all
local and governmental finance accounts. This is an interim status until further
notice. Effective immediately on the date of this resolution.  

RECOMMENDATION
It is Mayor Johnson's recommendation to appoint Ryan McClellen as Interim Finance Director
effective immediately on the date of this resolution.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Resolution 



  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-137 

 

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING AN INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR; AND 

PROVIDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE 

FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE AND ADOPTION.  

 

WHEREAS, the former Director of Finance, Laura Boyd, retired recently; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Mayor Dedrick D. Johnson and the Legal 

Department to appoint Ryan McClellen as interim Finance Director.  This resolution will authorize 

Ryan McClellen to be the official signature and authority for all official financial transactions on all 

local and governmental finance accounts. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 

CITY OF TEXAS CITY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION 1: That the City Commission of the City of Texas City, Texas, hereby approves 

the appointment of Ryan McClellen as interim Finance Director. 

 

 SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of December 2023. 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

      City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________    ____________________________    

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 



   
CITY COMMISSION REGULAR MTG (8) (a)        
Meeting Date: 12/06/2023  
Ordinance 2023-43 amending "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets Sidewalks and Other
Public Places"
Submitted For: Kim Golden, Transportation and Planning 
Submitted By: Veronica Carreon, Transportation and Planning
Department: Transportation and Planning

Information
ACTION REQUEST
Approve recommended changes to Section 90.012 regarding the use of
unimproved/unopened rights of way. 

BACKGROUND (Brief Summary)
This change is recommended to conform with existing city policies regarding the construction
and maintenance of city streets by Public Works and the operation of fire engines and aerial
apparatus on solid surfaced roadways defined as asphalt or concrete surface pavement.  

 Through annexation and past practices some areas of Texas City have unimproved,
unopened rights of way which are not city-maintained streets.  The Subdivision Ordinance
requires all new residential lots to have frontage on a public street.  However, there is some
confusion about the requirements for existing residential lots or parcels adjacent to an
unimproved, unopened right of way.  The recommended change to Section 90.012 will resolve
the confusion by making the street standards of the Subdivision Ordinance Chapter 159
applicable to existing residential lots or parcels adjacent to unimproved, unopened rights of
way.

RECOMMENDATION
The following departments have worked together in drafting the proposed revisions to Section
90.012 and recommend its approval:     Engineering & Planning,     Building Permits &
Inspections,     Public Works,     Fire Department

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
FINAL Proposed revision to 90.012 - use of rights of way 



 

 

ORDINANCE 23- 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

TEXAS, TEXAS AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE IX 

ENTITLED “GENERAL REGULATIONS”, CHAPTER 90 ENTITLED 

“STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES”; AND 

PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

WHEREAS, there are several unimproved/unopened rights of way in Texas City which predate 

the current provisions the Subdivision and Zoning ordinances, and 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Texas City to maintain roads that are constructed in 

accordance with the design standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions, 

including the donation of additional rights of way if necessary, and  

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City of Texas City that the public works department does not 

construct roads, and 

WHEREAS, it is the policy of the fire department for fire engines and aerial apparatus to remain 

on solid surfaced roadways defined as asphalt or concrete surfaced pavement; and  

WHEREAS, clarification is needed for the use of unimproved/unopened rights-of-way in 

residential zones. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISION OF THE CITY OF 

TEXAS CITY, TEXAS, THAT: 

Section 1: That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Texas City, Texas Chapter 90, 

Section 90.012 Use of Unimproved/Unopened Rights of Way be amended as follows: 

§ 90.012 USE OF UNIMPROVED/UNOPENED RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

An owner of real property within the city may be issued a permit to erect, construct and build a 

single-family residence adjacent to and accessible only by unimproved/unopened city-accepted 

right-of-way on the following conditions: 

(A)   The parcel of land upon which the residence is to be constructed shall be a minimum of two 

acres; 

(B)   The parcel of land has not been subdivided from a larger parcel of land since 1-18-1989, 

unless said subdivision occurred by city’s approval of a subdivision plat, plat amendment or replat; 

(B) No certificate of occupancy shall be issued unless and until all the requirements of this section 

are met; 

(C)   The parcel of land shall not be subdivided into smaller parcels unless approved by the city 

through a subdivision platting process; 



 

 

(D)   Only one single-family residence shall be constructed on the parcel of land for the purpose 

of homestead; 

(D) The property owner(s) shall construct and donate a street in accordance with the design 

standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions, including the donation of 

additional rights of way if necessary; 

(E)   A maximum of four single-family residences may be accessed by the same 

unimproved/unopened right-of-way. If, however, an application to construct a fifth single-family 

residence is sought, the owner of each existing single-family residence shall participate in the city’s 

street assessment program for road improvements; 

(E) The street shall connect to an existing improved paved public street which is maintained by 

the City or other public entity; 

(F)   The property owner(s) shall construct and maintain an all-weather access road capable of 

providing ingress and egress to emergency vehicles on the unimproved/unopened right-of-way. 

The construction shall be in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the City 

Engineer; and 

(F) The street shall be donated to the City for ownership and perpetual maintenance only after 

inspection and testing, final approval of the testing and inspection results by the City Engineer, 

and acceptance by the City.  The City may require the property owner(s) to provide the inspection 

and testing services prior to acceptance by the City;   

(G)   The city is not, nor shall it be, responsible for the construction, installation or maintenance 

of any road and/or roadside drainage improvements on the unimproved/unopened right-of-way. 

(G) The City shall only accept and maintain streets which comply with the requirements of Chapter 

159 - Subdivisions upon donation to the City and dedication to the public for use as a public street; 

and    

(H) The City is not, nor shall it be, responsible for the construction, installation or maintenance of 

any road and/or roadside drainage improvements on any unimproved/unopened rights of way not 

meeting the design standards and applicable provisions of Chapter 159 – Subdivisions.   

Section 2. This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Texas 

City, Texas, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the provisions 

of such Ordinances, in which event the more restrictive provision shall apply. 

 

Section 3.  It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Commission of the City 

of Texas City that the phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 

severable, and if any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance should be 

declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such unconstitutionality shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City 

Commission without incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 

sentence, paragraph or section. 



 

 

 

Section 4. All rights and privileges of the City of Texas City are expressly saved as to 

any and all violations of the provisions of any Ordinances affecting land use or development, which 

have accrued at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations 

and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such 

Ordinances, same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final 

disposition by the courts. 

 

 Section 5. That this Ordinance shall be read on three (3) separate days and shall 

become effective upon its final reading, passage, and adoption. 

 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be finally passed upon the date of its introduction 

and shall become effective from and after its passage and adoption and publication by caption only 

in the official newspaper of the City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 PASSED ON FIRST READING this ___ day of __________ 202___. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

   

 

  



 

 

 

 PASSED ON SECOND READING this ___ day of __________ 202___. 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

ATTEST:  

 

_______________________________ 

Rhomari D. Leigh 

City Secretary 

 

 

  PASSED AND FINALLY ADOPTED this ___ day of _________ 202___. 

 

 

________________________ 

Dedrick D. Johnson, Sr., Mayor  

City of Texas City, Texas 

 

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    _______________________   

Rhomari D. Leigh     Kyle L. Dickson 

City Secretary      City Attorney 

 


	Agenda
	AI 7056 December 2023 Service Awards
	AI 7037 Scavenger Hunt Awards
	AI 70747074
	       ATT_Staff Report
	Water billing/customer service department
	Beacon (smart meter)replacement project
	Beacon (smart meter)replacement project
	changes IN cellular TECHNOLOGY
	Growth in Texas city
	Growth in Texas city 
	Slide Number 7

	AI 70727072
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI 7064 Request to Consent to Annexation into Galveston County Municipal Utility District No. 79 - Resolution 23-135
	       ATT_GC79 Petition for Consent re Marlow North
	AI 7063 Purchase John Deere Mower
	       ATT_Agenda Item
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7070 Interim Finance Director
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI 7035 Ordinance 2023-43 amending  "General Regulations", Chapter 90: "Streets Sidewalks and Other Public Places"
	       ATT_FINAL Proposed revision to 90.012 - use of rights of way 

